Public Document Pack

Cabinet
Date:

Thursday, 27th May, 2021

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden,
CB11 4ER

Leader and Chair:
Members:

Councillor J Lodge
Councillors A Armstrong, C Day, D Eke, J Evans,
R Freeman, N Hargreaves, P Lees, L Pepper and
N Reeve

Other attendees:

Councillors M Caton (Liberal Democrat Party Group
Leader), C Criscione (Conservative Party Group
Leader), N Gregory (Chair of Scrutiny Committee), P
Fairhurst (Green Party Group Leader), E Oliver (Chair of
Governance, Audit and Performance Committee) and R
Pavitt (Uttlesford Independent Party Group Leader)

Public Speaking
At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. Please register your
intention to speak at this meeting by writing to committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
Public speakers will be offered the opportunity for an officer to read out their
questions or statement at the meeting, and encouraged to attend the meeting via
Zoom to readout their questions or statement themselves. For further information,
please see overleaf. Those who would like to watch the meeting live can do so
virtually here. The broadcast will be made available as soon as the meeting begins.

AGENDA
PART 1
Open to Public and Press
1

Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest
To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2021.

3

Questions or Statements from Non-Executive Members of the
Council (standing item)
To receive questions or statements from non-executive members on
matters included on the agenda.

4

Matters Referred to the Executive by the Scrutiny Committee
or by the Council (standing item)
To consider matters referred to the Executive for reconsideration in
accordance with the provisions of the Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules or the Budget and Policy Framework Rules.

5

Consideration of reports from overview and scrutiny
committees (standing item)
To consider any reports from Scrutiny Committee.

6

Report of Delegated Decisions taken by Cabinet Members
(standing item)

6 - 11

To receive for information any delegated decisions taken by Cabinet
Members since the previous Cabinet meeting.







7

Business Rates Relief Policy and the Restart Grants for
businesses – published on 29 March 2021
Newport, Quendon and Rickling Neighbourhood Plan - reexamination – published on 22 March 2021
Covid-19 Business Support Grant - Additional Restrictions
Grants – published on 6 April 2021
Post lockdown restrictions and enforcement powers –
published on 14 April 2021.
Community Services Review Working Group – published on
26 April 2021.
Council Tax Write Offs – published on 17 May 2021
Designation of Little Dunmow Neighbourhood Development
Plan Area – published on 18 May 2021

Report on assets of community value determined by the
Assets of Community Value and Local Heritage List
Committee (standing item)
To receive for information any decisions made by the Assets of
Community Value committee since the previous Cabinet meeting.


8

Local Heritage List – published on 23 April 2021:
https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID
=503

Appointments to Cabinet Committees

12

To consider appointments to Cabinet Committees.
9

Cabinet Working Groups - Terms of Reference

13 - 22

To approve the Terms of Reference for Cabinet Working Groups.
10

Cabinet Working Groups - Appointments

23 - 24

To consider appointments to Cabinet Working Groups.
11

Appointments to Outside Bodies

25

To consider appointments to Outside Bodies.
12

Appointments to North Essex Parking Partnership and the
West Essex Wellbeing Joint Committee

26

To consider appointments to the North Essex Parking Partnership
and the West Essex Wellbeing Joint Committee.
13

Local Plan Strategic Objectives
To consider the Local Plan Strategic Objectives report.

27 - 34

MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC
In light of the recent High Court judgement regarding the extension of remote meeting
regulations, Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings will now be returning to in-person
and will be held on-site from Thursday 6th May 2021. However, due to social distancing
measures and capacity considerations in line with the Council’s risk assessment, public
access and participation will continue to be encouraged virtually until further notice.
Members of the public are welcome to listen live to the debate of any of the Council’s
Cabinet or Committee meetings. All live broadcasts and meeting papers can be viewed
on the Council’s calendar of meetings webpage.
Members of the public are permitted to speak at this meeting and will be encouraged to
do so via the video conferencing platform Zoom. If you wish to make a statement via
Zoom video link, you will need to register with Democratic Services by midday two
working days before the meeting. There is a 15 minute public speaking limit and 3
minute speaking slots will be given on a first come, first served basis. Those wishing to
make a statement via video link will require an internet connection and a device with a
microphone and video camera enabled. Those wishing to make a statement to the
meeting who do not have internet access can do so via telephone.
Technical guidance on the practicalities of participating via Zoom will be given at the point of
confirming your registration slot, but if you have any questions regarding the best way to
participate in this meeting please call Democratic Services on 01799 510 369/410/467/548
who will advise on the options available.
Facilities for people with disabilities
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets. The Council
Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties can hear the
debate.
If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a meeting,
please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510410/467 as soon as
possible prior to the meeting.
Fire/emergency evacuation procedure
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest designated fire exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by a
designated officer. It is vital you follow their instructions.
For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510548, 510369, 510410 or 510467
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER
Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550
Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2
CABINET held at ZOOM - HTTPS://ZOOM.US/, on TUESDAY, 9 MARCH 2021
at 7.00 pm

Present:

Councillor J Lodge (Chair)
Councillors A Armstrong, C Day, J Evans, R Freeman,
N Hargreaves, P Lees, L Pepper and N Reeve

Officers in
attendance:

D French (Chief Executive), B Ferguson (Democratic Services
Manager), R Harborough (Director - Public Services), A Knight
(Assistant Director - Resources), J Reynolds (Lawyer) and
A Webb (Director - Finance and Corporate Services)

Also present: Councillors N Gregory (Chair of the Scrutiny Committee), S Luck
(Ward Member for Debden and Wimbish), R Pavitt (Uttlesford
Independents’ Group Leader) and M Tayler (Thaxted
Independents’ Group Leader)

CAB72

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Eke.

CAB73

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as a correct record, subject
to the addition of agreed and to the final sentence of CAB68:
Councillor Reeve agreed and said this is what Councillor Hargreaves had said
earlier.

CAB74

QUESTIONS OR STATEMENTS FROM NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS OF THE
COUNCIL (STANDING ITEM)
Councillor Gregory, the Chair of Scrutiny Committee, informed Cabinet that two
Scrutiny Committee meetings had taken place since the previous Cabinet
meeting. He said the item that had dominated proceedings was the Corporate
Plan Delivery Plan and the Committee held reservations regarding the length,
specificity and lack of clarity contained within the document. He said Councillor
LeCount had distilled the views of Committee Members, with the assistance of
Councillors Dean and Sell, and this document had been sent to Councillor
Reeve yesterday. He hoped Cabinet would give the Scrutiny Committee’s
comments the appropriate consideration.
Councillor Gregory gave his apologies at 7.10pm as he had to leave for another
meeting.

CAB75

REPORT OF DELEGATED DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET MEMBERS

Page 6

(STANDING ITEM)
Cabinet noted the Executive Decision made by the Leader regarding the
appointment to the Voluntary Support Grant Committee – published on 11
February 2021.

CAB76

VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANTS
Cabinet noted the decision lists of the Voluntary Support Grant Committee
meetings held on 15 and 23 February 2021.

CAB77

VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANTS: UTTLESFORD CITIZENS ADVICE
The Chair said the decision made by the VSG Committee to grant Uttlesford
Citizens Advice Bureau £160,000 required formal approval of Cabinet.
Councillor Hargreaves proposed approval; this was duly seconded by Councillor
Freeman.
The item was approved unanimously.
RESOLVED to approve the £160,000 grant to Uttlesford Citizens Advice.

CAB78

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT AND COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT STRATEGY
Councillor Evans presented the report on Statement of Community Involvement
and the Community Engagement Strategy. He said both documents had been
subject to public consultation and revisions had been applied to achieve greater
clarity. The revised documentation had been considered by the Scrutiny
Committee at its meeting on 16 February 2021. He said there had not been a
high response rate to the public consultation exercise, although that could have
been due to the technical nature of the document.
Councillor Evans proposed approval of the recommendation set out in the report.
Councillor Day seconded the proposal and said this was a first class document
that outlined the engagement process from “cradle to grave”. It was also
indicative of a number of technical documents that had been produced by the
Planning Policy team in the previous three months.
Councillor Reeve concurred and said the Administration were meeting their goal
of getting wider input into the Local Plan process.
The proposal was approved unanimously.
RESOLVED to approve the Statement of Community Involvement and the
Community Engagement Strategy for publication and use

Page 7

CAB79

BUDGET FORECAST OUTTURN - 2020/21 QUARTER 3
Councillor Hargreaves summarised the report on the Budget Forecast Outturn
2020/21 Quarter 3. He highlighted the General Fund and the predicted net
underspend of £503,000 and the overspend of the Capital Programme of
£89,948,000. Overall, he said the Council were in a favourable position in
comparison to many other councils, and that he hoped the financial impact of the
public health emergency would lessen as the year went on. He proposed
approval of the recommendation set out in the report.
Councillor Armstrong seconded the proposal.
The proposal was approved unanimously.
RESOLVED to approve The General Fund, Housing Revenue Account
and Capital Programme forecast outturn positions including the updated
use of reserves and requested slippage for the Capital Programme.

CAB80

CORPORATE PLAN DELIVERY PLAN 2020/21 PROGRESS UPDATE
Councillor Reeve presented the report on the Corporate Pan Delivery Plan
Progress update 2020/21. He referred to comments made by Councillor Gregory
regarding too much detail earlier in the meeting and said the additional detail
could be considered as beneficial to some people. He highlighted the progress
outlined in the report, relating to areas such as the Local Plan, Economic
Recovery, Climate Change Strategy and the related action plan, and said it
demonstrated the enormous amount of work the Council was implementing on
behalf of residents. He asked Members to note the progress update.
Councillor Day said the update showed how ambitious the Administration were in
comparison to other Local Authorities operating through the pandemic. He said it
was right to receive constructive criticism from the Scrutiny Committee but added
that the Council deserved a “pat on the back” as Members and officers had
ensured that services had continued despite the public health emergency.
Cabinet noted the progress update.

CAB81

CORPORATE PLAN DELIVERY PLAN 2021/22
Councillor Reeve presented the report on the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan
(CPDP) 2021/22. He said the Plan had been robustly scrutinised at the Scrutiny
Committee and he had taken note of their comments, but there would be no
changes made to the CPDP. He proposed approval of the document.

Page 8

In addition to the comments made by Councillor Gregory earlier in the meeting,
10 points had been submitted by Councillor LeCount the evening before. In
summary, Councillor Reeve responded to these points as follows:
 The Administration had decided not to strip out “business as
usual” items as there was a wish to provide a degree of continuity
with the Administration’s agenda.
 There was a great deal of detail contained within the CPDP as the
Administration wanted to show how each priority was progressing
throughout the year. Whilst the Scrutiny Committee considered
this a weakness, the Administration felt it was of benefit.
 Youth – more detail and measurable targets had been requested
by the Committee. However, the Administration were satisfied that
there was sufficient detail and the Portfolio Holder, Councillor
Day, was aware of what was required. Progress would be
reviewed mid-year.
 Corporate Change programme regarding the efficient running of
the Council– the Committee felt more detail was required but
Councillor Reeve said he was satisfied that the CPDP spelt out
how to achieve the said programme and no change was required.
 Member training programme – the Administration would wait until
the end of the pandemic before diverting from the current ‘ad hoc’
approach.
 The consequence of purchasing the Little Canfield site had not
been included as an action within the CPDP but was
encapsulated in the ‘Uttlesford moving forward’ project.
Councillor Reeve said there was a general theme running through all points that
had been raised by Scrutiny and said he would stop there.
The Leader said Cabinet were minded to approve the CPDP as presented in the
report, but Councillor Reeve would write to the Scrutiny Committee to formally
respond to the points raised.
Councillor Lees thanked Councillor Reeve for his presentation and asked
whether the CPDP would be reviewed in the late summer.
The Leader confirmed and said the CPDP would be reviewed mid-year.
Councillor Pepper said the document was live and some elements would be
updated, such as the tree planting scheme she was working on within her
portfolio.
Councillor Evans referenced the Local Plan process and said “locally led
Development Corporations” would only be applicable if it was resolved that new
communities were the way forward. He said developer contributions would also
be looked at and a Scrutiny Task & Finish Group had been setup to explore the
matter.
Councillor Day said Youth was the only new initiative included in the CPDP. It
had been introduced due to concerns that young people would be particularly

Page 9

impacted upon by the pandemic. However, he was pleased that young people
would be consulted on the Local Plan process so their voices could be heard,
and that further details would be released once young people’s involvement had
been scoped.
Councillor Armstrong seconded the proposal.
In response to a question from Councillor Reeve, the Chief Executive said the
document was live and it would be helpful for both officers and Members for the
Plan to be reviewed mid-year. She also confirmed that the intention was to revert
to quarterly reports to monitor the progress of the CPDP.
The proposal was unanimously approved.
RESOLVED to approve the corporate plan delivery plan 2021/22, as set
out in appendices A-D.

CAB82

CARVER BARRACKS RUNNING TRACK - EXTENSION TO LONGSTOP DATE
The Leader welcomed Councillor Luck, the relevant Ward Member for Debden
and Wimbish, to speak on Item 12 Carver Barracks Running Track – Extension
to Longstop date.
Councillor Luck said he understood the reasons for the delay to the running track
project throughout 2020, and the subsequent need for an extension to the
longstop date, but was pleased that a completion date was now in sight. He said
his ward constituents were behind the project, and the running track conformed
with the Administration’s commitments to youth and sports provision in the
district. Furthermore, the location of the track encouraged participants from
Great Dunmow and Stansted, as well as Saffron Walden, although he said
parking provision would be required. He said he was fully in support of the
project.
Councillor Armstrong proposed to extend the Longstop date for the project to 31
December 2021 as recommended in the report.
The Leader seconded the proposal.
Councillor Evans said he was strongly in support of the project as there was a
need for athletic facilities in the district. He knew of running clubs who would
make great use of the track during the winter months.
The Leader said he had been informed that there was great intent from the
Barracks to get the project completed, and they had been delayed for a variety of
reasons, including personnel deployment to Covid-19 testing centres. He was
satisfied it would be completed before the end of 2021.
The proposal was unanimously approved.

Page 10

RESOLVED that the longstop date for the project is revised to 31
December 2021

CAB83

LAND AT THE SIDE OF PETLANDS, LITTLE WALDEN
Councillor Lees introduced the report regarding the Land at the side of Petlands,
Little Walden and explained that the property in question had been sold under
“right to buy” and, subsequently, planning consent had been given to develop
part of the plot for a new dwelling. The land owner had now approached the
Council with regard to the granting of a new right of way and authority was
sought from Cabinet to proceed, on the basis that the land owner would bear all
valuation, legal and survey costs of the transaction. She proposed approval of
the recommendation in the report.
Councillor Day seconded the proposal.
The proposal was unanimously approved.
RESOLVED that Cabinet gives authority for Officers to negotiate and
agree the terms of the proposed easement, subject to prior payment by
the owner of the valuation fee.

. The meeting ended at 8.15pm.

Page 11

Agenda Item 8
COMMITTEES OF CABINET
ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE AND LOCAL HERITAGE LIST COMMITTEE:

Cllrs C Day, J Evans, R Freeman, P Lees and L Pepper
VOLUNTARY SUPPORT GRANTS COMMITTEE:

Cllrs N Hargreaves, P Lees, C Day and J Lodge

Page 12

CABINET WORKING GROUPS 2021/22

Name of
Group
Community
Achievement
Panel

Community
Services
Review
Working
Group

Terms of reference
To oversee the organisation of the Community Achievement Awards scheme
and make recommendations on the recipients of those awards.

(Status)

No of Members

Lead Officer

5

Sue Hayden

6

Fiona Gardiner

recommendations but is not a decision-making body.
(Membership)

Page 13

Cabinet which will include the portfolio holder for Council and Public Services.
One member of the CVS Uttlesford to be appointed to the working group. The
Portfolio-holder for Council and Public Services will Chair the working group.
Substitutes are not permitted.
-opted for a specified period of time where
their expertise would enhance the group. Any co-opted members will be
approved by the Chair and lead officer prior to their attendance.

(Function)
get population for the services
under review, using data about the age, health, quality of life, life expectancy,
etc. of our residents as well as issues such as connectivity
and experiences of local services and consider concerns and possible

Agenda Item 9

(Quorum)

Name of
Group

Terms of reference

No of Members

Lead Officer

7

Gordon Glenday

solutions.
to the older residents of our district and identify gaps in provision.
commission services to fill any identified
gaps in services
new opportunities currently being explored and how they fit with the above.
(Meetings)
private.

Page 14

Energy and
Climate
Change
Working
Group

Status
This is a working group of the Cabinet. It may make recommendations but is
not a decision-making body.
Membership
Seven members of the Council to be appointed by the Cabinet on nomination
by group leaders. In the event that more than 7 nominations are submitted,
Cabinet will be required to vote on who is
appointed.
Two Youth Councillors will be invited to attend meetings as non-voting
members of the Working Group.
Attendance
Officers will attend to support the Working Group as necessary. The Working
Group may invite other parties to attend and to contribute to meetings as it
decides.
Meetings
The Working Group will fix its own timetable for meetings. Meetings will be
open to the public, subject to the exclusion rules that apply to committee
meetings. Agendas and minutes will be published on the Council website.
Officer support
A senior Council officer will be designated as the lead officer for the Working
Group. Democratic Services will provide administrative support for the
Working Group.
Role of the Working Group

Name of
Group

Page 15
Highways
Panel

Housing
Board

Terms of reference
The Council has declared a Climate and Ecological Emergency, acting now to
prevent a climate and ecological catastrophe that will greatly impact our
children, grandchildren and future generations It has also committed to
achieving net-zero carbon status by 2030 and protecting and enhancing
biodiversity.
The Working Group will:
 Enable collaborative working across the Council and engagement with
individuals, community groups, businesses and other partners in the
district, including young people who should have a voice to help
shape our future.
 Investigate steps that may be taken by the Council and by Uttlesford
residents and businesses to work towards the Council’s commitment
to achieving net-zero carbon status by 2030 and towards protecting
and enhancing bio-diversity.
 Produce a bold plan of action that is realistic, measurable and
deliverable for recommendation to the Cabinet.
 Monitor delivery of the action plan once adopted to ensure that
significant progress has been made to deliver the action plan by April
2023.
 Identify support needed from Central Government in terms of funding,
additional powers and policy changes which are needed to achieve
the Council’s climate and ecological objectives.
 Make recommendations to the Council, Cabinet or others that would
help to achieve the Council’s climate and ecological objectives.
See ECC website:
https://www.essexhighways.org/Highway-Schemes-and-Developments/LocalHighway-Panels/Uttlesford-LHP.aspx
1. Inform on and monitor the performance and delivery of all Council housing
related strategies and policies
2. Monitor housing related performance indicators
3. Inform on and monitor the Council’s Housing
4. Monitor the Council’s Housing Revenue Account
5. Monitor and inform on the delivery of affordable housing units in the District

No of Members

Lead Officer

4 + 4 County
members

Rissa Long
ECC

10 + 2 tenant reps

Roz Millership

Name of
Group

Terms of reference

No of Members

Lead Officer

12

Adrian Webb

12

Stephen Miles

6.Consider the use of existing housing stock and other housing assets
Investment
Board

Status
This is a working group of the Cabinet. It may make recommendations but is
not a decision-making body. The Investment Board will be constituted by
members with a knowledge of commercial investment, supplemented with
external training as necessary, and supported by industry expert independent
people.

Page 16

Membership
Twelve members of the Council to be appointed by the Cabinet, on
nomination by group leaders. (8 R4U, 2 Liberal Democrat, 1 Conservative, 1
Independent Group.) The group will also have two independent members of
the public to provide additional support and guidance to the members.
Quorum to be 50% of the Board membership, to include the two independent
members of the public (i.e. 7 when fully appointed).
Attendance
Officers will attend to support the Working Group as necessary. The Working
Group may invite other parties to attend and to contribute to
meetings as it decides.
Meetings
The Working Group will fix its own timetable for meetings. Meetings will be
open to the public, subject to the exclusion rules that apply to
committee meetings. Agendas and minutes will be published on the Council
website.
Officer support
A senior Council officer will be designated as the lead officer for the Working
Group. Democratic Services will provide administrative support for the
Working Group.
Local Plan
Leadership

(Status)

Name of
Group
Group

Terms of reference
recommendations but is not a decision-making body.
(Membership)
The Portfolio-holder for Planning and the Local Plan will be invited to attend in
a non-voting capacity in order to answer any questions that may arise.
Substitutes are not permitted.
(Quorum)
group members (three). During any meeting if the Chairman counts the
number of members present and declares there is not a quorum present, then
the meeting will be adjourned immediately.
(Function)

Page 17

agreed development needs of the district during the course of the plan period
in the most appropriate manner;
Uttlesford Local Plan 2020 – 2040, and related planning policy documents, in
the light of both documents submitted by officers to the Leadership Group for
consideration and any other matters as the Group sees fit;
minutes and to provide a copy of their statement, subject to having registered
to speak in advance;
Councils to address the Group for a maximum of 5 minutes and to provide a
copy of their statement, subject to having registered to speak in advance;
(Meetings)
address the meeting, at the chairs discretion this may be extended;

No of Members

Lead Officer

Name of
Group

Terms of reference

No of Members

Lead Officer

5

Richard Auty

Group considers that to be either desirable or necessary in the interests of
commercial confidentiality, or there were matters arising which might
otherwise be considered detrimental to the Local Plan making process, if
discussed in public;
quently as necessary in order to enable the preparation of
the plan to proceed in accordance with the current timetable;
would like to see addressed at the next, or a forthcoming, meeting.
Museum
Management
Working
Group

1. The Group shall comprise the Cabinet Member with responsibility for the
Museum Service and four further members and five directors of the
Society.

Page 18

2. The Museum Curator shall attend all meetings of the Group in an advisory
capacity and in accordance with the requirements of the national
Accreditation Scheme for museums or any replacement thereof.
3. Meetings shall normally be held in private and the Council shall meet the
costs of all MMWG meetings and be responsible for the taking of minutes
at such meetings.
4. The Group is to meet a minimum of four times in a year in order to:i.

Receive a quarterly report from the Museum Curator about the
Museum Service.

ii.

Agree and recommend to the Council and the Society the provision
of the Uttlesford Museum Service and the Museum Service strategic
objectives and long term plans

iii.

Discuss matters and make recommendations to the Council and the
Society on matters relating to the management of the Museum
Service where a decision needs to be taken or an action needs to
be ratified by the Council and/or the Society including the purchase
or disposal of objects and the loan of objects to other museums

iv. Act as the Museum’s governing body for the purpose of the
Accreditation scheme and implementation of appropriate codes of

Name of
Group

Terms of reference

No of Members

Lead Officer

practice
v. Appoint from the Group the Council’s representative to attend at and
report on any relevant meetings of other organisations as determined
by the Group
vi. Invite representatives of other Uttlesford museums and public
galleries to attend a meeting of the Group if necessary or appropriate
to the matters under discussion
vii. Recommend to the Council hours of opening to the public and the
admission charges to be levied on all users of the Museum having
regard to promoting accessibility of the Museum and social inclusion
and any requirements imposed on the Museum Service by other
agencies.
viii.

Page 19

ix.

Where appropriate make recommendations to the Society and/or the
Council concerning alterations to the interior or exterior of the
Museum building major projects capital developments and any other
significant proposals affecting the Museum
Generally promote and act as advocates for the Museum

Stansted
Airport
Advisory
Panel

1) Form an overview of policy and operational issues in relation to Stansted
2) Monitor the activities of the airport in the interests of the people of the
district.
3) Review and anticipate future developments at the airport and in aviation
policy.

10

Roger Harborough

Strategic
Infrastructure
Delivery
Group

Status

7

Roger Harborough

This is a Member Reference Group for the Cabinet chaired by the Portfolio
Holder for Infrastructure, Transport and Stansted Airport. It may make
recommendations but it is not a decision making body.
Membership

Name of
Group

Terms of reference
Seven members of the Council to be appointed by the Leader (on
nominations by group leaders). In the event that more than seven
nominations are submitted, the Leader will determine the final appointments.
A member will also be invited from Essex County Council. No substitutions to
be permitted.
Membership of the Delivery Group will also be open by invitation to a select
number of strategic stakeholders including East Hertfordshire, Braintree and
South Cambridgeshire District Councils, other adjacent local authorities and
Sub National Transport Bodies. Other key stakeholders, such as transport or
utilities companies will be invited to participate when specific issues are to be
considered.
Attendance

Page 20

Officers will attend to support the Group as necessary, including a senior
officer from each of the invited local authorities.
Meetings
The Group will fix its own timetable for meetings. Meetings will generally be
held in private to enable matters which may be commercially sensitive to be
discussed in confidence. This will also assist frank exploratory discussions
with partner local authorities about matters that have not yet been considered
in public due to their commercial sensitivity.
Officer Support
The Group will be supported by officers with responsibilities for preparing
technical reports and administrative support. A senior officer (UDC Director of
Place Services) will be designated as the lead officer for the Group.
Democratic Services of the District Council will provide administrative support
for the Group.
Role of the Group

No of Members

Lead Officer

Name of
Group

Terms of reference
The Group will have three primary purposes:

Page 21



To identify strategically significant development proposals,
infrastructure requirements and other matters where cross boundary
collaboration is required and or considered of mutual benefit



To promote through cross boundary collaboration and co-ordination
promoted development proposals and infrastructure requirements
through studies to inform Local Plan and master plan making,
investment feasibility and business cases, funding bids and delivery
and long-term stewardship arrangements



To deliver the timely provision of promoted development proposals
and infrastructure requirements through external funding and delivery
arrangements

Objective of the Group
The shared objective of the Group for each partner will be to inform, promote
and facilitate delivery of better planned and co-ordinated strategic
development and infrastructure requirements for mutual and individual
member benefit. The benefits to be measured in terms of:


Contributions towards Corporate Plan vision, objectives and priorities
for place making and soundness of emerging Local Plans



Support for sustainable growth contributing to towards the
Government’s net zero carbon emissions 2050 target



Protection and enhancement of the area’s heritage, character,

No of Members

Lead Officer

Name of
Group

Terms of reference
communities and built and natural capital (including air quality, water
resource management and biodiversity)

Explanation of Approach
In undertaking work the Group will seek to ensure that partners influence
each other to achieve common objectives. The work will be based on
identifying, obtaining and commissioning up to date and sound evidence.

No of Members

Lead Officer

Page 22

Agenda Item 10
WORKING GROUPS OF THE CABINET
Name of Group
Community
Achievement Panel

No of
Members
5

Membership
H Asker
M Caton
P Lees (C)
A Coote
C Day
R Freeman (C)
A Khan
M Caton
C Criscione
G Driscoll
R Freeman

M Sutton
Vacancy

UDC Members
G Driscoll
G LeCount
R Jones
G Sell
A Armstrong
A Coote
A Dean
A Khan
P Lees (C)

ECC Members
S Barker
R Gooding
P Gadd
M Foley
M Lemon
S Merifield
N Reeve
G Driscoll
M Foley

Community Services
Review Working Group

6

Energy and Climate
Change and Working
Group

7

Highways Panel

4 + 4 ECC
members

Housing Board

10 + 2
tenant reps

Investment Board

12 + 2
G Bagnall
independent C Criscione
members
N Hargreaves
A Khan
P Lavelle
G LeCount
12
G Bagnall (C)
M Caton
R Freeman
P Lees
B Light
M Lemon
5 + 5 Board A Armstrong
Members
N Gregory
B Light

J Lodge
R Pavitt
N Reeve
G Sell
J de Vries
Vacancy
S Merifield
R Pavitt
N Reeve
Vacancy
M Sutton
M Tayler
G Sell (C)
R Freeman

10

V Isham
G LeCount
M Lemon
S Luck
N Reeve

Local Plan Leadership
Group

Museum Management
Working Group
Stansted Airport
Advisory Panel

M Caton
A Dean
D Eke
P Fairhurst
M Foley

Page 23

P Lavelle
M Tayler

B Light
L Pepper (C)
R Pavitt

Strategic Infrastructure
Delivery Group

7 + external
reps

M Caton
C Criscione
G Driscoll
J Evans (C)

Page 24

N Gregory
L Pepper
M Tayler

Agenda Item 11

REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22
Organisation

Number

Representative (s)

Armed Forces and Community Covenant
Board of Turpins Indoor Bowling Club
Campaign to Protect Rural Essex
Committee of the Friends of the Maltings
CSP
Cooperation for Sustainable Development
Board
Council for Voluntary Services – Uttlesford
Crawley Prize Endowment
Dunmow Day Centre Management Cttee
Dunmow Museum Management Cttee
Essex County Traveller Unit
Essex Flood Partnership Board
Essex Waste Partnership Board
Friends of Bridge End Gardens
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Board
Historic England Heritage Champion
Local Government Association - General
Assembly
LGA – SPARSE Rural Assembly
Local Strategic Partnership
London Stansted Cambridge Consortium
Parking and Traffic Regulation outside
London Adjudication Committee
Saffron Walden Arts Trust
Saffron Walden Business Improvement
District (SW BID)
Saffron Walden Museum Society
Stansted Airport Community Trust
Stansted Airport Consultative Committee
Stansted Day Centre Management Committee
Strategic Aviation Special Interest Group
Thaxted Guildhall Management Cttee
Uttlesford Association of Local Councils
Uttlesford Citizens' Advice Bureau
Uttlesford Community Travel
Uttlesford Transport Forum

1
1
1
1
1
1

Rod Jones
Paul Fairhurst
Martin Foley
Patrick Lavelle
TBD
John Evans

1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Sandi Merifield
Colin Day & John Lodge
Patrick Lavelle
Rod Jones
Colin Day
Richard Pavitt
Patrick Lavelle
Richard Freeman
John Evans
Geoffrey Sell
John Lodge

1
1
1
1

John Evans
Colin Day
John Lodge
Geof Driscoll

1
1

Paul Fairhurst
Neil Reeve

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
4

West Essex Transportation Board

1

Barbara Light
Garry LeCount
Sandi Merifield
Geoffrey Sell
Louise Pepper
Mike Tayler
Christian Criscione
Richard Freeman
Geoffrey Sell
Richard Freeman, Geof
Driscol Mark Lemon &
Garry LeCount
Geof Driscoll

Page 25

Agenda Item 12
JOINT COMMITTEES
NORTH ESSEX PARKING PARTNERSHIP:

Cllr R Freeman
Substitute Member: Cllr A Armstrong
WEST ESSEX WELLBEING JOINT COMMITTEE:

Cllrs P Lees and M Tayler

Page 26

Agenda Item 13
Committee:

Cabinet

Date:

Title:

Local Plan Strategic Objectives

Tuesday, 27 May
2021

Portfolio
Holder:

Councillor J Evans, Portfolio Holder for
Planning and the Local Plan

Report
Author:

Stephen Miles, Local Plans and New
Communities Manager

Key decision:
No

smiles@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. The Council is working on a new Local Plan, one of the first tasks for the
Council is to agree the Strategic Objectives for the plan.
Recommendations
2. Subject to the Local Plan Leadership Group (LPLG) meeting on 24 May 2021,
to approve the draft vision and objectives for the new Local Plan as
recommended by the LPLG.
Financial Implications
3. The approved budget for the Local Plan in 2021-22 includes sufficient
provision for the work needed through to the end of March.
Background Papers
4. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
-

Planning Advisory Service - Local Plan Route Mapper
Planning Advisory Service - Good Plan Making Guide

Impact
5.
Communication/Consultation

The draft timetable builds in three stages
for people to make representations on the
draft Local Plan.

Community Safety

N/a.

Equalities

Forthcoming policies will be subject to an
Equalities and Healthy Impact Assessment

Page 27

(EqHIA).
Health and Safety

N/a.

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

Preparation of a local plan is a statutory
duty. It needs to meet legal tests and
comply with regulations.

Sustainability

Forthcoming policies will need to meet the
sustainability objectives of the Council and
the Local Plan will be subject to a
Sustainability Appraisal.

Ward-specific impacts

All.

Workforce/Workplace

N/a.

Situation
6. The Council is working on a new Local Plan for the district. The Local Plan
Leadership Group has a key role in this process – in providing clear direction
during the preparation of the Draft Plan so that officers can carry out the
technical work that is required to write the Draft Plan. The timetable is tight
and it is vital that decisions are made in accordance with the agreed timetable
so as to avoid slippage.
7. The timetable for the Local Plan was agreed at Cabinet in October 20201. At
Local Plan Leadership Group (LPLG) on 29 April the Group considered the
detailed work programme to December 2021. This programme sets out three
key tasks for LPLG and Cabinet over the summer, the first of which is to agree
the strategic objectives for the Draft Plan.
8. In order for officers to assess sites and prepare draft planning policies it will be
necessary to set some clear strategic planning objectives. This is identified as
a role for the Cabinet informed by the deliberations of this Group. It is
proposed that the strategic objectives will provide high level direction and that
they be derived from the following:
a. National Planning Policy Framework (plans must be consistent with the
NPPF to be sound);
b. The approved Uttlesford District Council Corporate Plan;
c. The Inspectors’ findings on the withdrawn local plan;
d. Feedback from the Issues and Options Stage; and
e. Other relevant sources (for instance best practice that arises from the
longer term planning response to Covid-19)




1

The timetable for the Local Plan is contained in the Council’s Local Development Scheme

Page 28

9. A workshop with members of LPLG is set up for 17 May to discuss the vision
and strategic objectives. Using the above principles this workshop will
consider the national requirements, the local policy drivers and look at what
the Local Plan should be looking to achieve.
The local plan must contain a vision which should be aspirational but
realistic. It should set out the intended character of the plan area, based on
current trends and trajectory of key data such as that related to population
and economy. Objectives should flow from the vision, establishing the way in
which the plan area will deal with the identified critical issues. Together,
these should be clear, realistic, locally distinctive and spatial in planning
terms.2
10. The workshop will examine the vision and objectives of recently adopted Local
Plans to use ‘best practice’ and will need to address (for example):
a. The need to deliver a sufficient supply of homes;
b. The national need and local commitment to address climate change
and achieve zero carbon; and
c. The local commitment to be an active place maker.
11. A paper setting out the conclusions of this workshop will be presented to LPLG
on or before 24 May.
Risk Analysis
12.
Risk

Likelihood

That the
2 – the
objectives are not timetable is
approved in a
tight
timely manner
impacting on the
ability of the
Council to keep to
the timetable for
the Local Plan in
in the LDS

Impact

Mitigating actions

3 – any delay
in the Local
Plan timetable
extends the
period of time
that the district
is vulnerable
to speculative
development

The member
workshop on 17 May
allows for an
opportunity to discuss
the potential
objectives

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.




2

PAS – Good Plan Making Guide paragraph 1.1

Page 29

Cabinet 27 May 2021 Supplementary Paper
1.

LPLG Workshop 17 May 2021 & LPLG 24 May

1.1.

Background

1.1.1.

On the evening of Monday 17 May a workshop was held for LPLG members to discuss the
vision and objectives for the Local Plan. Members discussed the purpose of the vision and
objectives, in terms of:
-

The vision setting out an aspirational view of what the district will look like in twenty
years’ time; and
The objectives setting out aspirational and realistic ways of achieving this vision.

1.1.2.

This vision and accompanying objectives will be used to develop the policies and
allocations for the plan.

1.1.3.

Members considered and discussed what was important to the district and looked at
examples of others’ visions and objectives. Officers took notes throughout the discussion
and after the workshop have used the members’ views to prepare the below draft vision
and objectives.

1.1.4.

On 24 May LPLG considered the draft vision and objectives and made a number of changes.
LPLG then recommended that Cabinet approve this draft vision and objectives for the
purpose of informing the drafting of the Local Plan and the assessment of sites.

1.1.5.

LPLG noted that members will have the opportunity to refine the wording of this vision and
objectives, as the final version will be agreed for consultation in early 2022. Therefore, at
this point in time LPLG focussed on the principles in the draft text set out below. Future
text to be added, as well as changes from the version discussed at LPLG are highlighted
yellow.

1.2.

Draft Vision for Uttlesford

1.2.1.

Our vision reflects the ambition required to achieve net-zero carbon status by 2030 and to
protect and enhance Uttlesford’s rich natural environment and built heritage.

1.2.2.

Residents will know their views have been listened to and will have the opportunity to
influence decision making. Town and Parish councils will play an increasing role in this.
Local people will be involved in making Uttlesford ‘the best place to live, work and play’.
Uttlesford will embrace the changes required to be net zero carbon, enabling us to live,
work and play within the limits of the environment whilst protecting our natural
environment

1.2.3.

The essential landscape value of Uttlesford’s countryside will be enhanced promoting
biodiversity and increased woodland, contributing to the region's prosperous rural and

Page 30

agricultural economy. The rivers of Uttlesford will be protected and enhanced, and
together with green infrastructure, contribute to a network of blue and green corridors for
the benefit of wildlife and people. Hatfield Forest will be part of this network, however it
will also be protected from overuse. Access to the countryside for recreation and tourism
will be promoted in a managed way, supporting agricultural diversification, the creation of
jobs and the healthy lifestyles of residents and visitors alike. The network of footpaths,
safe cycle routes and bridleways will be expanded and improved resulting in Uttlesford
residents having the highest levels of active travel and health in Essex.
Uttlesford’s rich natural and historical heritage will be protected and enhanced, for the
health and enjoyment of people now and in the future
1.2.4.

Uttlesford will be known for its beautiful rolling countryside, its market towns and villages
with a rich heritage, and a strong cultural offer and economy that operates at a local,
national and international scale. The needs of local people, as well as generations after will
be met and the people of the district will be healthier, happier and able to meet most of
their day-to-day needs locally within a community that is good for their health and wellbeing.
Uttlesford will have a diverse, resilient and thriving sustainable economy

1.2.5.

Uttlesford will have a diverse range of businesses and a tourism offer which supports the
attractive towns and villages acting as employment and service centres for the surrounding
rural hinterland. The district will work with its partners to ensure business growth will be
ambitious, innovative, future focussed and benefit the whole district. Small businesses,
creative start-ups and a growing number of people working from home will be positively
supported. The local benefits of Stansted Airport will be maximised, while its
environmental impacts are managed and minimised. Links to other sources of prosperity
will also benefit the district. The north of the district will benefit from appropriate
improved links into the high-skilled ‘Cambridge phenomenon’, supporting high-value job
growth at Chesterford Research Park and elsewhere. The south of the district will benefit
from appropriate improved links to Harlow, Chelmsford, Bishop’s Stortford and Braintree.

1.2.6.

The market towns of the district will have sustainable, viable and vibrant town centres with
a diverse range of stores and other facilities to attract people to shop and visit. Villages
with smaller centres will meet the day-to-day needs of their local catchments.
New development will link homes with jobs, be of high quality design and focus on
sustainable construction, materials and travel

1.2.7.

New development will be focussed on providing the right homes and employment in the
right place, in line with policies, to address the challenge of climate change, to strengthen
communities and provide greater opportunities to live and work locally. … [To be added to
following consideration of the Preliminary Outline Strategy in July]

1.2.8.

How people travel through and around the district will have changed, and the use of public
transport and active travel as an alternative to the car will be far greater than it is today.
The necessary infrastructure to support this change will be delivered in a timely manner.
The district will support car use shifting to zero tailpipe emission vehicles by providing

Page 31

appropriate infrastructure. Furthermore, the level of commuting will be addressed to
reduce the need to travel and address congestion and climate change.
1.2.9.

High quality design will protect and enhance the intrinsic character and built heritage of
Uttlesford’s towns, villages, and the wider environment will be balanced with the benefits
of proportionate development to provide affordable housing, local jobs or additional
community facilities. The quality of new development will be high, and supported by
appropriate design guidance, agreed with local communities.

1.2.10.

New buildings will be designed to low energy standards and renewable energy generation
will meet the district’s needs.

1.3.

Draft Objectives for Uttlesford
a. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding & drought
To ensure Uttlesford adapts to the effects of climate change including extremes of
weather, through:
-

The location, design and resilience of development;
Planning for low energy new development;
Planning for renewable energy provision in the district; and
Reducing and managing the risk of flooding and drought.

b. Prioritising water resilience, sustainable consumption and river health
To ensure the health of our rivers and sustainable water use by:
-

Ensuring water can be sustainably supplied to new development;
Incorporating enhanced water efficiency standards in new development;
Ensuring that sewage treatment and water recycling is upgraded to support
development; and
Prioritising reduced pollution of our rivers.

c. Promoting healthy and safe communities
To plan and design new and existing places to promote healthy and safe communities by:
-

Encouraging physical and mental well-being;
Enabling active travel;
Designing well-connected communities that function well;
Enabling access to open green space for leisure, play and sport; and
Enabling social connection and inclusion.

d. Conserving and enhancing the natural and built environment
To proactively conserve and enhance our natural and built environment by:
-

Creating and protecting a network of green and blue wildlife corridors with our
partners throughout the district; and

Page 32

-

Protecting the high quality, beautiful landscape of the district;

e. Conserving and enhancing the built environment
To proactively conserve and enhance our built environment by:
-

Delivering development of high quality design within existing settlements; and
Protecting historic buildings and village cores from harmful development.

f.

Building a strong and competitive economy

Build a diverse, resilient, sustainable economy by:
-

Planning for job growth to align with the existing population distribution and
population growth in the district;
Enabling inward investment to promote higher value jobs and diverse employment
opportunities within the district;
Enabling local employment by protecting the best existing employment sites from
changing to other uses;
Supporting agricultural diversification, culture, leisure and tourism to create a diverse
rural economy;
Supporting high quality communications.

g. Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Ensuring the vitality of town centres by:
-

Enhancing the role of the market towns in serving the wider needs of their hinterlands;
Supporting the provision of a wide range of services and facilities for Uttlesford whilst
conserving and enhancing the historic character of our town and village centres; and
Protecting and enhancing retail and commercial sites and managing loss to other uses.

h. Delivering a sufficient supply of the right homes in the right places
Delivering a sufficient supply of the right homes in the right places by:
-

Planning for sustainable, safe, attractive and healthy places to live while meeting local
and lifetime housing needs in terms of type and tenure including affordable housing
and housing for people with specific accommodation needs.

i.

Achieving well-designed places and making effective use of land

Achieve well-designed places and make effective use of land by:
-

Developing design policies and guidance to support high quality new development; and
Planning for developments at an optimal density to make an effective use of land,
reduce the loss of agricultural land and viable support services and facilities.

j.

Enabling infrastructure and promoting sustainable transport

To proactively enable infrastructure and promote sustainable transport by:

Page 33

-

Enable utility providers to improve their infrastructure and services so that they can
meet people’s current and future needs, protect the environment;
Providing new homes close to jobs, services and facilities, promoting active travel
opportunities;
Enable innovative but realistic transport improvements, particularly better and more
integrated public transport, cycling, pedestrian and bridleway facilities;
Enable the maintenance of and qualitative improvements to sporting and leisure
facilities, including enhancing opportunities for culture and tourism; and
Help the public to access and enjoy open spaces such as parks and allotments and
support healthy lifestyles.

k. Protecting the Green Belt and the Countryside Protection Zone
Protecting the Green Belt and Countryside Protection Zone by:
-

Ensuring development does not harm the purposes of the Green Belt or the
Countryside Protection Zone.

Page 34

